
OPEN MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL 

A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 

Tuesday, May 9, 2017 · 9:30 AM  
Laguna Woods City Hall - 24264 El Toro Road 

NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Before an action item is open for discussion a motion and a second must be recognized by 
the Chair.  After the Board discusses the issue, the Chair will open the floor to the audience 
on the immediately pending motion or resolution.  There is a maximum time limit of three (3) 
minutes per member during the Member Comments period.  There is a maximum time limit of 
minutes for member comments on motions before the Board.  A Member may only address 
the Chair once for each agenda item.  

1. Call Meeting to Order / Establish Quorum – Juanita Skillman

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Don Tibbetts

3. Acknowledge Media

4. Approval of Agenda

5. Approval of Minutes

(a) April 11, 2017 – Regular Open Session

6. Member Comments

At this time the members may address the Board of Directors regarding any item
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors of the United Laguna Woods Mutual.
There is a maximum time limit of three (3) minutes per member and a member may
only address the Board once during this period.  The Board reserves the right to limit
the total amount of time allotted for the Member’s Forum.

7. Response to Member Comments (Time Limit of three (3) Minutes per Director)

8. Report of the Chair

9. Update from VMS – Anthony Liberatore

10. Report of the CEO

11. Consent Calendar

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be
enacted by the Board by one motion in the form listed below. In the event that an item
is removed from the Consent Calendar by a member(s) of the Board, such item(s)



United Laguna Woods Mutual May 9, 2017 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Page 2 of 4 

shall be the subject of further discussion and action by the Board. 

(a) Maintenance & Construction Committee Recommendations: 
587-D Approve relocating front powder room, bathroom to existing enclosed 

atrium. 
396-B Approve converting atrium into master bath /closet and add window to 

master bedroom. 
360-A Approve replacing existing entry steps with ramp. 
360-A Approve window addition to previously approved variance room 

addition in patio. 
2159-D Approve a door addition from enclosed patio to entry way. 
703-B Approve the extension of kitchen into patio. 
862-P Approve installing air conditioning unit with copper piping. 
236-B Approve converting enclosed balcony into master bedroom. 
565-C Approve Removing Existing Steps and Replace with Terraced Steps 

(b) Landscape Committee Recommendations: 
621-B  Approve request for tree removal (see Agenda Item 12(c) page 2) 
712-C  Deny request for drainage addition (see Agenda Item 12(c) page 2) 

(c) Finance Committee Recommendations: 
None 

(d) Approve changing the Name of the Executive Hearing Committee to Member 
Hearings Committee 

(e) Approve Red Curb Request Procedures 

12. COMMITTEE REPORTS

Before an action item is open for discussion a motion and a second must be
recognized by the Chair.  After the Board discusses the issue, the Chair will open the
floor to the audience on the motion or resolution.  A Member may only address the
Chair once for each agenda item. There is a maximum time limit of three (3) minutes
on motions before the Board. The Board reserves the right to limit the total amount of
time allotted.

(a) Finance Committee Report – Pat English

I. United Financial Update 

II. Report of Delinquencies

III. Report on Resale & Sub-Lease Activity

IV. 2017 Budget Calendar



United Laguna Woods Mutual May 9, 2017 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Page 3 of 4 

(b) Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee – Don Tibbetts 

I. Entertain a Motion to Establish a Committee and Charter for the United 
Architectural Control and Standards Committee – Resolution 

(c) Report of the Landscape Committee –  Maggie Blackwell  

(d) Report of the Governing Documents Review Committee – Juanita Skillman 

(e) Report of the Communications Committee – Maggie Blackwell 

(f) Report of the Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings  – Don Tibbetts 

(g) Report of the Preparedness for Disaster Task Force – Andre Torng 

(h) Report of Disciplinary Cases – Juanita Skillman 

13. Unfinished Business

(a) Entertain a Motion to Approve United Mutual Committee Appointments –
Resolution 

(b) Entertain a Motion to Approve GRF Committee Appointments – Resolution 

(c) Entertain a Motion to refer the Drone Policy back to Security and Community 
Access 

(d) Entertain a Motion to Approve Directors Code of Conduct – Resolution 

(e) Entertain a Motion to Approve Revisions to the Parking Decal Policy –
Resolution (the 30 day notification requirement has been satisfied) 

14. New Business

(a) Select Audit Committee Representative Appointment

15. GRF Committee Highlights

16. Directors’ Forum (Time Limit of 3 Minutes per Director)

17. RECESS

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Entertain a Motion to Approve Limiting the Use of Common Area – Resolution (initial
notification – postponed to June to conform to the 30 day notification requirement)

2. Entertain a Motion to Approve the 90 Day Lease Recognition Program



United Laguna Woods Mutual  May 9, 2017 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors  
Page 4 of 4 
 

3. Entertain a Motion to Approve Changes to the Damage Restoration Hearing 
Determination Letter 

4. Entertain a Motion to Approve GRF Giving United the Ability to Turn Off Cable 
 

 
CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION AGENDA 
At this time the Meeting will recess for lunch and reconvene to Executive Session to discuss 
the following matters per California Civil Code §4935.  
 

1. Approval of Agenda 
2. Approval of the Following Meeting Minutes; 

a. April 11, 2017 – Regular Executive Session 
b. April 21, 2017 – Special Executive Session 

3. Discuss and Consider Member Matters 
4. Discuss Personnel Matters 
5. Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters  
6. Discuss and Consider Litigation Matters  



Agenda Item #5a
Page 1 of 17



Agenda Item #5a
Page 2 of 17



Agenda Item #5a
Page 3 of 17



Agenda Item #5a
Page 4 of 17



Agenda Item #5a
Page 5 of 17



Agenda Item #5a
Page 6 of 17



Agenda Item #5a 
Page 7 of 17



Agenda Item #5a
Page 8 of 17



Agenda Item #5a
Page 9 of 17



Agenda Item #5a 
Page 10 of 17



Agenda Item #5a 
Page 11 of 17



Agenda Item #5a 
Page 12 of 17



Agenda Item #5a 
Page 13 of 17



Agenda Item #5a 
Page 14 of 17



Agenda Item #5a 
Page 15 of 17



Agenda Item #5a 
Page 16 of 17



Agenda Item #5a
Page 17 of 17



this page intentionally left blank



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 1 of 11 

ENDORSEMENT 

Mr. Maganbhai N Patel of 587-D Avenida Majorca- Relocate Front Powder Room, 
Bathroom to existing enclosed Atrium. 

By way of the Consent Calendar, the Committee unanimously voted to recommend the 
Board approve the request for a variance to Relocate Front Powder Room, Bathroom to 
existing enclosed Atrium with the following conditions:  

1. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the responsibility
of the Mutual member(s) at 587-D. 

2. A required Mutual Consent for a Manor Alteration Permit Application must be
submitted to Manor Alterations Division office located in the Laguna Woods Community 
Center.  

3. A required City of Laguna Woods permit must be obtained and the appropriate City of
Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Division 
office located in the Laguna Woods Community Center. The City permit must be 
finalized within the prescribed timeframe.  

4. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations Permit, a complete
set of unit specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer 
depicting the proposed alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations 
Department office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans 
must depict any required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the 
building is maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations.  

5. During construction, both the mutual consent for manor alterations and the city
building permit must be on display at all times in the front window. 

6. Under no circumstances is construction waste allowed to be dumped in the Village
trash bins.  Construction waste must be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of 
this condition may result in disciplinary action! 

Agenda Item #11a
Page 1 of 27



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

     Variance Request 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the variance request of Mr. Maganbhai N 
Patel of 587-D Avenida Majorca to relocate front powder room, bathroom 
to existing enclosed atrium, is hereby approved; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all costs and maintenance of the alteration, 
present and future, are the responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 587-
D Avenida Majorca; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Consent for a Manor Alteration 
Permit Application must be submitted to Manor Alterations Division office 
located in the Laguna Woods Community Center; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required City of Laguna Woods permit must be 
obtained and the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) 
must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Division office located in the 
Laguna Woods Community Center. The City permit must be finalized 
within the prescribed timeframe; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 
Manor Alterations Permit, a complete set of unit specific plans prepared by
a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the proposed 
alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must 
depict any required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity 
of the building is maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations; 
and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  during construction, both the mutual consent for 
manor alterations and the city building permit must be on display at all 
times in the front window; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  under no circumstances is construction waste 
allowed to be dumped in the Village trash bins.  Construction waste must 
be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of this condition may result 
in disciplinary action; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11a
Page 2 of 27



this page intentionally left blank



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 2 of 11 

ENDORSEMENT 

Ms. Tania Rahmany of 396-B Avenida Castilla - Convert Atrium into Master Bath 
/Closet and Add Window to Master BDRM. 

By way of the Consent Calendar, the Committee unanimously voted to recommend the 
Board approve the request for a variance to Convert Atrium into Master Bath /Closet 
and Add Window to Master Bedroom with the following conditions:  

1. The Mutual Member(s) at 396-B must sign and submit to United Laguna Woods
Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., Attention Pamela Bashline, Community Services Manager, the 
“Recordable Common Area Agreement” for the subject expansion utilizing Common 
Area.  

2. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the responsibility
of the Mutual member(s) at 396-B. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations a complete set of unit
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the 
proposed alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is 
maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations.  

4. A required Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods
permit must be obtained and the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) 
must be submitted to the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed timeframe for 
permits.  

5. A required Mutual Roof Alteration Notification (Tie-In Form) must be submitted to the
Laguna Woods Village Manor Alterations Department prior to the issuance of a Mutual 
Consent.  

6. All alterations must be installed in accordance to California State Building Code, and
United Mutual Standard Section 14: Exhaust Fan/ Vent Installations, Section 18: Gutters 
& Downspouts, Section 29: Washer and Dryer Installations, Section 30: Water Heater 
Relocation   Section 31: Windows and Window Attachments. 

7. Prior to issuance of mutual consent for manor alterations a “Recordable Common
Area Agreement” must be filed with the County Clerk. 

8. During construction, both the mutual consent for manor alterations and the city
building permit must be on display at all times in the front window. 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 3 of 27



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 3 of 11 

9. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alternation Permit, the Mutual
Member shall request a Broadband infrastructure inspection to assure that mutual 
property cable and utility wiring is appropriately addressed during construction.   

10. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations Permit, all drainage
modifications associated with the alterations are to be completed by the Maintenance 
Division at the expense of the Mutual member(s) at Manor 396-B. All gutter drainage 
shall be directed away from structures, free-standing walls, foundations, and pedestrian 
walkways.   

11. Under no circumstances is construction waste allowed to be dumped in the Village
trash bins.  Construction waste must be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of 
this condition may result in disciplinary action! 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 4 of 27



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

     Variance Request 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the variance request of Ms. Tania 
Rahmany of 396-B Avenida Castilla to convert atrium into master bath 
/closet and add window to master bedroom, is hereby approved; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER,  the Mutual Member(s) at 396-B must sign and 
submit to United Laguna Woods Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., Attention Pamela 
Bashline, Community Services Manager, the “Recordable Common Area 
Agreement” for the subject expansion utilizing Common Area; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and 
future, are the responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 396-B; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 
Manor Alterations a complete set of unit specific plans prepared by a 
licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the proposed alterations 
must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office located in 
the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the 
building is maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods permit must be obtained and the 
appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to 
the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed 
timeframe for permits; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Roof Alteration Notification 
(Tie-In Form) must be submitted to the Laguna Woods Village Manor 
Alterations Department prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all alterations must be installed in accordance to 
California State Building Code, and United Mutual Standard Section 14: 
Exhaust Fan/ Vent Installations, Section 18: Gutters & Downspouts, 
Section 29: Washer and Dryer Installations, Section 30: Water Heater 
Relocation   Section 31: Windows and Window Attachments; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to issuance of mutual consent for manor 
alterations a “Recordable Common Area Agreement” must be filed with 
the County Clerk; and 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 5 of 27



RESOLVED FURTHER,  during construction, both the mutual consent for 
manor alterations and the city building permit must be on display at all 
times in the front window; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 
Manor Alternation Permit, the Mutual Member shall request a Broadband 
infrastructure inspection to assure that mutual property cable and utility 
wiring is appropriately addressed during construction; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 
Manor Alterations Permit, all drainage modifications associated with the 
alterations are to be completed by the Maintenance Division at the 
expense of the Mutual member(s) at Manor 396-B. All gutter drainage 
shall be directed away from structures, free-standing walls, foundations, 
and pedestrian walkways; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  under no circumstances is construction waste 
allowed to be dumped in the Village trash bins.  Construction waste must 
be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of this condition may result 
in disciplinary action; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 6 of 27



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 4 of 11 

ENDORSEMENT 

Mr. Suk Soo Kim of 360-A Avenida Castilla - Replace Existing Entry Steps with 
Ramp. 

By way of the Consent Calendar, the Committee unanimously voted to recommend the 
Board approve the request for a variance to Replace Existing Entry Steps with Ramp 
with the following conditions:  

1. The Mutual Member(s) at 360-A must sign and submit to United Laguna Woods
Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., Attention Pamela Bashline, Community Services Manager, the 
“Recordable Common Area Agreement” for the subject expansion utilizing Common 
Area.  

2. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the responsibility
of the Mutual member(s) at 360-A. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations a complete set of unit
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the 
proposed alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is 
maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations.  

4. A required Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) and City of Laguna Woods permit
must be obtained and the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be 
submitted to the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed timeframe for 
permits.  

5. All landscape, irrigation, and drainage modifications associated with the alterations
are to be completed by the Landscape Division at the expense of the Mutual member(s) 
at Manor 360-A. 

6. All alterations must be installed in accordance to California State Building Code.

7. Prior to issuance of mutual consent for manor alterations a “Recordable Common
Area Agreement” must be filed with the County Clerk. 

8. Prior to the issuance of a mutual consent for manor alterations, Neighbor Awareness
Form(s) must be obtained from the affected neighbor at 360-B, 359-B, 359-C and 318-
C. No construction may proceed prior to receiving this executed form and approval by 
the Manor Alterations Department and the City of Laguna Woods.  

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 7 of 27



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 5 of 11 

9. During construction, both the mutual consent for manor alterations and any
applicable city building permits must be on display at all times in the front window. 

10. Under no circumstances is construction waste allowed to be dumped in the Village
trash bins.  Construction waste must be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of 
this condition may result in disciplinary action! 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 8 of 27



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

     Variance Request 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the variance request of Mr. Suk Soo Kim 
of 360-A Avenida Castilla to replace existing entry steps with a ramp, is 
hereby approved; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER,  the Mutual Member(s) at 360-A must sign and 
submit to United Laguna Woods Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., Attention Pamela 
Bashline, Community Services Manager, the “Recordable Common Area 
Agreement” for the subject expansion utilizing Common Area; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and 
future, are the responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 360-A; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 
Manor Alterations a complete set of unit specific plans prepared by a 
licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the proposed alterations 
must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office located in 
the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the 
building is maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alteration(s) and City of Laguna Woods permit must be obtained and the 
appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to 
the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed 
timeframe for permits; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all landscape, irrigation, and drainage 
modifications associated with the alterations are to be completed by the 
Landscape Division at the expense of the Mutual member(s) at Manor 
360-A; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all alterations must be installed in accordance to 
California State Building Code; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to issuance of mutual consent for manor 
alterations a “Recordable Common Area Agreement” must be filed with 
the County Clerk; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a mutual consent for 
manor alterations, Neighbor Awareness Form(s) must be obtained from 
the affected neighbor at 360-B, 359-B, 359-C and 318-C. No construction 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 9 of 27



may proceed prior to receiving this executed form and approval by the 
Manor Alterations Department and the City of Laguna Woods; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER,  during construction, both the mutual consent for 
manor alterations and any applicable city building permits must be on 
display at all times in the front window; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER,  under no circumstances is construction waste 
allowed to be dumped in the Village trash bins.  Construction waste must 
be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of this condition may result 
in disciplinary action; and 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER,  that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 10 of 27



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 6 of 11 

ENDORSEMENT 

Mr. Suk Soo Kim of 360-A Avenida Castilla - Window Addition to previously 
approved Variance Room Addition. 

A motion was made to recommend the Board approve the request for Window Addition 
to previously approved Variance Room Addition. By a vote of 4/0/0 the motioned carried 
with the following conditions:  

1. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the responsibility
of the Mutual member(s) at 360-A. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations a complete set of unit
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the 
proposed alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is 
maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations.  

3. A required Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods
permit must be obtained and the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) 
must be submitted to the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed timeframe for 
permits.  

4. All alterations must be installed in accordance to California State Building Code, and
United Mutual Standard Section 31: Windows and Window Attachments. 

5. During construction, both the mutual consent for manor alterations and the city
building permit must be on display at all times in the front window. 

6. Under no circumstances is construction waste allowed to be dumped in the Village
trash bins.  Construction waste must be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of 
this condition may result in disciplinary action! 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 11 of 27



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

     Variance Request 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the variance request of Mr. Suk Soo Kim 
of 360-A Avenida Castilla - Window Addition to previously approved 
Variance Room Addition, is hereby approved; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all costs and maintenance of the alteration, 
present and future, are the responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 360-
A; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alterations a complete set of unit specific plans prepared by a licensed architect 
or structural engineer depicting the proposed alterations must be submitted to the 
Manor Alterations Department office located in the Laguna Woods Village 
Community Center.  The plans must depict any required structural modifications 
ensuring the structural integrity of the building is maintained upon completion of 
the proposed alterations; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods permit must be obtained and the 
appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to 
the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed 
timeframe for permits; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all alterations must be installed in accordance to 
California State Building Code, and United Mutual Standard Section 31: 
Windows and Window Attachments; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  during construction, both the mutual consent for 
manor alterations and the city building permit must be on display at all 
times in the front window; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  under no circumstances is construction waste 
allowed to be dumped in the Village trash bins.  Construction waste must 
be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of this condition may result 
in disciplinary action; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 12 of 27



this page intentionally left blank



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 7 of 11 

ENDORSEMENT 

Ms. May Lan of 2159-D Via Mariposa East- Door Addition from Enclosed Patio to 
Entry Way. 

A motion was made to recommend the Board approve the request for a Door Addition 
from Enclosed Patio to Entry Way. By a vote of 4/0/0 the motioned carried with the 
following conditions:  

1. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the responsibility
of the Mutual member(s) at 2159-D. 

2. Existing Mutual Consent 170197 (Door Revision from Bedroom to Patio) must be
approved prior to completion. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations a complete set of unit
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the 
proposed alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is 
maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations.  

4. A required Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods
permit must be obtained and the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) 
must be submitted to the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed timeframe for 
permits.  

5. All alterations must be installed in accordance to California State Building Code, and
United Laguna Woods Mutual Standards Section 11: Doors, Exterior. 

6. During construction, both the mutual consent for manor alterations and the city
building permit must be on display at all times in the front window. 

7. Under no circumstances is construction waste allowed to be dumped in the Village
trash bins.  Construction waste must be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of 
this condition may result in disciplinary action! 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 13 of 27



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

     Variance Request 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the variance request of Ms. May Lan of 
2159-D Via Mariposa East - door addition from enclosed patio to entry 
way, is hereby approved; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all costs and maintenance of the alteration, 
present and future, are the responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 2159-
D; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  existing Mutual Consent 170197 (Door Revision from 
Bedroom to Patio) must be approved prior to completion; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 
Manor Alterations a complete set of unit specific plans prepared by a 
licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the proposed alterations 
must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office located in 
the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the 
building is maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods permit must be obtained and the 
appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to 
the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed 
timeframe for permits; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all alterations must be installed in accordance to 
California State Building Code, and United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Standards Section 11: Doors, Exterior; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  during construction, both the mutual consent for 
manor alterations and the city building permit must be on display at all 
times in the front window; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  under no circumstances is construction waste 
allowed to be dumped in the Village trash bins.  Construction waste must 
be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of this condition may result 
in disciplinary action; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,   that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 14 of 27



this page intentionally left blank



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 8 of 11 

ENDORSEMENT 

Mr. John Lavinio of 703-B Avenida Sevilla - Extension of Kitchen into Patio 

A motion was made to recommend the Board approve the request for an Extension of 
Kitchen into Patio. By a vote of 4/0/0 the motioned carried with the following conditions: 

1. The Mutual Member(s) at 703-B must sign and submit to United Laguna Woods
Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., Attention Pamela Bashline, Community Services Manager, the 
“Recordable Common Area Agreement” for the subject expansion utilizing Common 
Area.  

2. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the responsibility
of the Mutual member(s) at 703-B. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations a complete set of unit
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the 
proposed alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is 
maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations.  

4. A required Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods
permit must be obtained and the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) 
must be submitted to the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed timeframe for 
permits.  

5. A required Mutual Roof Alteration Notification (Tie-In Form) must be submitted to the
Laguna Woods Village Manor Alterations Department prior to the issuance of a Mutual 
Consent.  

6. All landscape, irrigation, and drainage modifications associated with the alterations
are to be completed by the Landscape Division at the expense of the Mutual member(s) 
at Manor 703-B. 

7. All alterations must be installed in accordance to California State Building Code, and
United Mutual Standard Section 11: Doors, Exterior and Section 31: Window and 
Window Attachments, Section 17: Patio Gates and Courtyard Doors and Section 8: 
Patio Block Walls.  

8. Prior to the issuance of a mutual consent for manor alterations, Neighbor Awareness
Form(s) must be obtained from the affected neighbor at 703-A, 704-B and 704-C. No 
construction may proceed prior to receiving this executed form and approval by the 
Manor Alterations Department and the City of Laguna Woods.   

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 15 of 27



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 9 of 11 

9. Prior to issuance of mutual consent for manor alterations a “Recordable Common
Area Agreement” must be filed with the County Clerk. 

10. During construction, both the mutual consent for manor alterations and the city
building permit must be on display at all times in the front window. 

11. Under no circumstances is construction waste allowed to be dumped in the Village
trash bins.  Construction waste must be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of 
this condition may result in disciplinary action! 

12. Prior to the issuance of a mutual consent for manor alterations, Member must
provide a report from a Certified Plumber confirming waste lines have been inspected 
with a camera and show no signs of repair needed.  

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 16 of 27



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

     Variance Request 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the variance request of Mr. John Lavinio of 
703-B Avenida Sevilla - extension of kitchen into patio, is hereby 
approved; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER,  the Mutual Member(s) at 703-B must sign and 
submit to United Laguna Woods Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., Attention Pamela 
Bashline, Community Services Manager, the “Recordable Common Area 
Agreement” for the subject expansion utilizing Common Area; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and 
future, are the responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 703-B; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 
Manor Alterations a complete set of unit specific plans prepared by a 
licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the proposed alterations 
must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office located in 
the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the 
building is maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods permit must be obtained and the 
appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to 
the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed 
timeframe for permits; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Roof Alteration Notification 
(Tie-In Form) must be submitted to the Laguna Woods Village Manor 
Alterations Department prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all landscape, irrigation, and drainage 
modifications associated with the alterations are to be completed by the 
Landscape Division at the expense of the Mutual member(s) at Manor 
703-B; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all alterations must be installed in accordance to 
California State Building Code, and United Mutual Standard Section 11: 
Doors, Exterior and Section 31: Window and Window Attachments, 
Section 17: Patio Gates and Courtyard Doors and Section 8: Patio Block 
Walls; and 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 17 of 27



RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a mutual consent for 
manor alterations, Neighbor Awareness Form(s) must be obtained from 
the affected neighbor at 703-A, 704-B and 704-C. No construction may 
proceed prior to receiving this executed form and approval by the Manor 
Alterations Department and the City of Laguna Woods; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to issuance of mutual consent for manor 
alterations a “Recordable Common Area Agreement” must be filed with 
the County Clerk; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  under no circumstances is construction waste 
allowed to be dumped in the Village trash bins.  Construction waste must 
be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of this condition may result 
in disciplinary action; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a mutual consent for 
manor alterations, Member must provide a report from a Certified Plumber 
confirming waste lines have been inspected with a camera and show no 
signs of repair needed; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, During construction, both the mutual consent for 
manor alterations and the city building permit must be on display at all 
times in the front window; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 18 of 27



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 10 of 11 

ENDORSEMENT  

Ms. Sharon J. Ballantyne of 862-P Ronda Mendoza, Install Air Conditioning Unit 
with Copper Piping. 

By way of the Consent Calendar, the Committee unanimously voted to recommend the 
Board approve the request for a variance to Install Air Conditioning Unit with Copper 
Piping with the following conditions: 

1. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the responsibility
of the Mutual member(s) at 862-P. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations a complete set of unit
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the 
proposed alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is 
maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations.  

3. A required Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods
permit must be obtained and the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) 
must be submitted to the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed timeframe for 
permits.  

4. All landscape, irrigation, and drainage modifications associated with the alterations
are to be completed by the Landscape Division at the expense of the Mutual member(s) 
at Manor 862-P. 

5. All alterations must be installed in accordance to California State Building Code, and
United Mutual Standard Section 6: Air Conditioning Units/Heat Pumps 

6. During construction, both the mutual consent for manor alterations and the city
building permit must be on display at all times in the front window. 

7. Under no circumstances is construction waste allowed to be dumped in the Village
trash bins.  Construction waste must be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of 
this condition may result in disciplinary action! 

Agenda Item #11a
Page 19 of 27



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

     Variance Request 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the variance request of Ms. Sharon J. 
Ballantyne of 862-P Ronda Mendoza, Install Air Conditioning Unit with 
Copper Piping, is hereby approved; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER,   all costs and maintenance of the alteration, 
present and future, are the responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 862-
P; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alterations a complete set of unit specific plans prepared by a licensed architect 
or structural engineer depicting the proposed alterations must be submitted to the 
Manor Alterations Department office located in the Laguna Woods Village 
Community Center.  The plans must depict any required structural modifications 
ensuring the structural integrity of the building is maintained upon completion of 
the proposed alterations; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods permit must be obtained and the 
appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to 
the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed 
timeframe for permits; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all landscape, irrigation, and drainage 
modifications associated with the alterations are to be completed by the 
Landscape Division at the expense of the Mutual member(s) at Manor 
862-P; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all alterations must be installed in accordance to 
California State Building Code, and United Mutual Standard Section 6: Air 
Conditioning Units/Heat Pumps; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  during construction, both the mutual consent for 
manor alterations and the city building permit must be on display at all 
times in the front window; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  under no circumstances is construction waste 
allowed to be dumped in the Village trash bins.  Construction waste must 
be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of this condition may result 
in disciplinary action; and 

Agenda Item #11a
Page 20 of 27



RESOLVED FURTHER,  that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11a
Page 21 of 27



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 11 of 11 

ENDORSEMENT  

Mr. Thomas L Skaggs of 236-B Calle Aragon – Convert Enclosed Balcony into 
Master Bedroom. 

By way of the Consent Calendar, the Committee unanimously voted to recommend the 
Board approve the request for a variance to Convert Enclosed Balcony into Master 
Bedroom with the following conditions: 

1. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the responsibility
of the Mutual member(s) at 236-B. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations a complete set of unit
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the 
proposed alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is 
maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations.  

3. A required Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods
permit must be obtained and the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) 
must be submitted to the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed timeframe for 
permits.  

4. All alterations must be installed in accordance to California State Building Code.

5. During construction, both the mutual consent for manor alterations and the city
building permit must be on display at all times in the front window. 

6. Under no circumstances is construction waste allowed to be dumped in the Village
trash bins.  Construction waste must be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of 
this condition may result in disciplinary action! 

Agenda Item #11a
Page 22 of 27



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

     Variance Request 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the variance request of Mr. Thomas L 
Skaggs of 236-B Calle Aragon – convert enclosed balcony into master 
bedroom, is hereby approved; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER,   all costs and maintenance of the alteration, 
present and future, are the responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 236-
B; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alterations a complete set of unit specific plans prepared by a licensed architect 
or structural engineer depicting the proposed alterations must be submitted to the 
Manor Alterations Department office located in the Laguna Woods Village 
Community Center.  The plans must depict any required structural modifications 
ensuring the structural integrity of the building is maintained upon completion of 
the proposed alterations; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alteration(s) and a City of Laguna Woods permit must be obtained and the 
appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to 
the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed 
timeframe for permits; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all alterations must be installed in accordance to 
California State Building Code; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  during construction, both the mutual consent for 
manor alterations and the city building permit must be on display at all 
times in the front window; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  under no circumstances is construction waste 
allowed to be dumped in the Village trash bins.  Construction waste must 
be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of this condition may result 
in disciplinary action; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11a
Page 23 of 27



this page intentionally left blank



ENDORSEMENT  

Ms. Shirley A Macy of 565-C Avenida Sevilla - Remove Existing Steps and 
Replace with Terraced Steps 

Staff recommends the Board approve the removal of the existing steps and replace with 
terraced steps at Manor 565-C with the following conditions: 

1. The Mutual Member(s) at 565-C must sign and submit to United Laguna Woods
Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., Attention Pamela Bashline, Community Services
Manager, the “Recordable Common Area Agreement” for the subject expansion
utilizing Common Area.

2. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the
responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 565-C.

3. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations a complete set of
unit specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer
depicting the proposed alterations must be submitted to the Manor Alterations
Department office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The
plans must depict any required structural modifications ensuring the structural
integrity of the building is maintained upon completion of the proposed
alterations.

4. A required Mutual Consent for Manor Alteration(s) and City of Laguna Woods
permit must be obtained and the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit
number(s) must be submitted to the Permits and Inspections office located in the
Laguna Woods Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the
prescribed timeframe for permits.

5. All landscape, irrigation, and drainage modifications associated with the
alterations are to be completed by the Landscape Division at the expense of the
Mutual member(s) at Manor 565-C.

6. All alterations must be installed in accordance to California State Building Code.

7. Prior to issuance of mutual consent for manor alterations a “Recordable Common
Area Agreement” must be filed with the County Clerk.

8. Prior to the issuance of a mutual consent for manor alterations, Neighbor
Awareness Form(s) must be obtained from the affected neighbor at 561 D, 561-

Agenda Item #11a
Page 24 of 27



Q and 566-D. No construction may proceed prior to receiving this executed form 
and approval by the Manor Alterations Department and the City of Laguna 
Woods.   

9. During construction, both the mutual consent for manor alterations and any
applicable city building permits must be on display at all times in the front
window.

10. Under no circumstances is construction waste allowed to be dumped in the
Village trash bins.  Construction waste must be disposed offsite by the
contractor.  Violation of this condition may result in disciplinary action!

Agenda Item #11a
Page 25 of 27



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

     Variance Request 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the variance request of Ms. Shirley A 
Macy of 565-C Avenida Sevilla to remove existing steps and replace with 
terraced steps, is hereby approved; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER,  the Mutual Member(s) at 565-C must sign and 
submit to United Laguna Woods Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., Attention Pamela 
Bashline, Community Services Manager, the “Recordable Common Area 
Agreement” for the subject expansion utilizing Common Area; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and 
future, are the responsibility of the Mutual member(s) at 565-C; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 
Manor Alterations a complete set of unit specific plans prepared by a 
licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the proposed alterations 
must be submitted to the Manor Alterations Department office located in 
the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the 
building is maintained upon completion of the proposed alterations; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  a required Mutual Consent for Manor 
Alteration(s) and City of Laguna Woods permit must be obtained and the 
appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to 
the Permits and Inspections office located in the Laguna Woods 
Community Center. Both permits must be finalized within the prescribed 
timeframe for permits; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all landscape, irrigation, and drainage 
modifications associated with the alterations are to be completed by the 
Landscape Division at the expense of the Mutual member(s) at Manor 
565-C; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  all alterations must be installed in accordance to 
California State Building Code; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to issuance of mutual consent for manor 
alterations a “Recordable Common Area Agreement” must be filed with 
the County Clerk; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  prior to the issuance of a mutual consent for 
manor alterations, Neighbor Awareness Form(s) must be obtained from 
the affected neighbor at 561 D, 561-Q and 566-D. No construction may 

Agenda Item #11a
Page 26 of 27



proceed prior to receiving this executed form and approval by the Manor 
Alterations Department and the City of Laguna Woods; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  during construction, both the mutual consent for 
manor alterations and any applicable city building permits must be on 
display at all times in the front window; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  under no circumstances is construction waste 
allowed to be dumped in the Village trash bins.  Construction waste must 
be disposed offsite by the contractor.  Violation of this condition may result 
in disciplinary action; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER,  that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #11a 
Page 27 of 27



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

Change the Name of the Executive Hearing Committee to 
Member Hearings Committee 

WHEREAS, the Board established an Executive Committee on 
February 10, 2015 as a Committee of three or more Directors for the 
sole purpose of hearing disciplinary hearing matters; and 

WHEREAS, the Board recommends to change the name to fit the 
purpose of the Committee;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the Board of 
Directors hereby agrees to change the name of the Executive Hearing 
Committee to the Member Hearings Committee; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item # 11d
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

ENDORSEMENT (to United) 

Red Curb Request Procedures 

A significant amount of area that could be used for vehicle parking has curb that is 
painted red.  The Committee can expect resident requests in the future to paint curbs 
red for a variety of reasons.  Staff recommends that the Board adopt a policy to address 
these requests on a principle basis, rather than on an ad hoc basis. 

The proposed policy specifies that curbs will be painted red only when required by 
statute, or when a safety issue has been identified by a formal study.   

A motion was made and carried by a vote of 4/0/0 to recommend the Board adopt the 
attached Red Curb Request Procedure and Proposed Resolution. 

Agenda Item #11e
Page 1 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: April 26, 2017

FOR:  Maintenance and Construction Committee 

SUBJECT: Red Curb Request Procedures 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached Red Curb Request Procedures and Resolution. 

BACKGROUND 

Last fall the Third M&C Committee requested an assessment of parking supply and demand in 
the Mutual.  Staff commissioned the study with an outside consultant having expertise in the 
area and previous experience within Laguna Woods Village.  The consultant presented a study 
with recommendations for action at the Third M&C Committee meeting on January 9, 2017. 

Based on a review of the actions taken by Third Mutual, the United M&C Committee, at their 
meeting on January 25, 2017, directed staff to move forward on the establishment of a 
procedure for the evaluation and approval of requests for red curbs. 

Staff prepared a set of Red Curb Reset Procedures and a resolution for the Committee’s
consideration and approval (Attachments 1 & 2). 

DISCUSSION

As the Committee is aware, a significant amount of area that could be used for vehicle parking 
has curb that is painted red.  The Committee can expect resident requests in the future to paint 
curbs red for a variety of reasons.  Staff recommends that the Board adopt a policy 
(Attachment 1) to address these requests on a principle basis, rather than on an ad hoc basis. 

The policy will have several benefits.  Firstly, it will allow residents to know what types of 
requests are considered appropriate. Secondly, it will better enable the staff to treat resident 
requests equally.  Thirdly, it will prevent frivolous requests.   

The proposed policy specifies that curbs will be painted red only when required by statute, or 
when a safety issue has been identified by a formal study.  Such impressionistic and non-
empirical criteria as convenience and aesthetics are not recommended. In the event staff 
recommends denial of a red curb request the member has the option to appeal to the Board. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None 

Agenda Item #11e
Page 2 of 5



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Revised Red Curb Request Procedures 
April 26, 2017 
Page 2 

Prepared By: David Collins, Senior Management Analyst 

Reviewed By: Ernesto Munoz, P.E., Maintenance Operations Director 
Lori Moss, Community Manager 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Attachment 1: Proposed Red Curb Reset Procedures 
Attachment 2: Proposed Resolution 

Agenda Item #11e
Page 3 of 5



Attachment 1 

RED CURB REQUEST PROCEDURE 

1. Any request from a resident to have curbs painted red shall be reviewed and decided
on by VMS Maintenance & Construction Division Staff.  Denials may be appealed to
the Maintenance and Construction Committee. Staff shall provide a report with a
recommendation for action to the Maintenance & Construction Committee on all
appeals.

2. Staff shall only recommend approval of such a request if:

A. Legal requirements imposed on the Mutual such as Fire Lanes, etc. require 
a red curb. 

Or 

B. A finding is made from an engineering study that such red curb is needed for 
safety reasons. 

Agenda Item #11e
Page 4 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



Attachment 2 

RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

RED CURB REQUEST PROCEDURES 

WHEREAS, available parking has become a premium in the Mutual; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wishes to prevent any parking space from being
eliminated without sufficient justification; and

WHEREAS, there is currently no policy regarding the painting of roadway curbs in the
community red; and

WHEREAS, the Maintenance and Construction committee recommends that the Board of
Directors of United Laguna Woods Mutual ("Board") establish policy and procedures for
Red Curb Requests in the community;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the Board of Directors of the
Corporation hereby approve the Red Curb Request Procedures; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are hereby
authorized on behalf of the corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution.

Agenda Item #11e
Page 5 of 5

WHEREAS, such procedure allows staff to approve painting red curbs only when 
required by statute, or when a safety issue has been identified by a formal study, with 
appeals going to M&C; and



this page intentionally left blank



5/3/2017

1

Click to edit Master title styleClick to edit Master title styleUnited Treasurers Report
as of March 31, 2017 (in Thousands)

INCOME STATEMENT ACTUAL

TOTAL REVENUE $9,854

TOTAL EXPENSE 8,351

Revenue over Expense $1,503

Slide 1

Click to edit Master title styleClick to edit Master title style
United Treasurers Report

as of March 31, 2017 (in Thousands)

With a favorable bottom line of $1,503K, compared to a 
planned surplus of $24K through March, United was better 
than budget by $1,479K primarily due to:

Expenditures: 

• Wasteline Replacements, work started late April

• Water Heater Replacements, researching methods

• Roof Replacements, work scheduled later in the year

• Timing of operating material purchases

Slide 2

Agenda Item #12aI
Page 1 of 3



5/3/2017

2

Click to edit Master title styleClick to edit Master title style
Total Non Assessment Revenues $344,698

as of March 31, 2017 

Slide 3

44% Miscellaneous

22% Interest Income

22% Fees and Charges for Services

9% Laundry

3% Other

Click to edit Master title styleClick to edit Master title style
Total Expenses $8,350,757

as of March 31, 2017 

39% Employee Compensation and Related

30% Property and Sales Tax

10% Utilities and Telephones

7% Material and Supplies

5% Outside Services

4% Insurance

3% Net Allocations To Mutuals

2% Other

Slide 4

Agenda Item #12aI
Page 2 of 3



5/3/2017

3

Click to edit Master title styleClick to edit Master title styleUnited Treasurers Report
as of March 31, 2017 (in Thousands)

FUND BALANCES ACTUAL

BEGINNING BALANCES: 1/1/17 $20,412

Contributions & Interest 3,059 

Expenditures (1,707)

Current Balances: 3/31/17 $21,764

Slide 5

Agenda Item #12aI
Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 12a
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 12aIII
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 12aIII
Page 3 of 4



U
N

IT
E

D
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 W

O
O

D
S

 M
U

T
U

A
L

N
e

w
 M

o
n

th
ly

 T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s

M
O

N
T

H
1
 M

o
n

th
3
 M

o
n

th
s

6
 M

o
n

th
s

1
2
 M

o
n

th
s

1
2
+

M
o

n
th

s
Le

a
se

s
R

e
n

e
w

a
ls

E
x

te
n

si
o

n
s

J
A

N
.

1
3
5

6
7

4
0
8

8
5
1
9

4
4

3
8

2
0

F
E

B
.

0
3
3

6
6

4
0
6

9
5
1
4

3
3

4
0

0
1

M
A

R
C

H
1

3
2

6
0

4
1
5

1
0

5
1
8

6
5

6
0

0
1

A
P

R
IL

2
2
0

3
8

4
0
6

1
3

4
7
9

7
1

4
2

0
1
1

M
A

Y

J
U

N
E

J
U

L
Y

A
U

G
U

S
T

S
E

P
T

.

O
C

T
.

N
O

V
.

D
E

C
.

M
o

n
th

ly
1
.0

3
0
.0

5
7
.8

4
0
8
.8

1
0
.0

5
0
7
.5

4
7
6
.0

5
3
.3

4
5
.0

0
.5

3
.3

A
v

e
ra

g
e

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 

L
e
a
s
e
d

5
1
8

/
6
3
2
3

=
8

%
N

e
w

 L
e
a
s
e
s
 =

 U
n
it
s
 S

u
b
le

t

T
o

ta
l 

E
x
p

ir
a
ti

o
n

s

M
O

N
T

H
L

Y
 L

E
A

S
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
R

e
p

o
rt

 P
e
ri

o
d

: 

A
p

r-
1
7

L
E

A
S

E
S

 I
N

 E
F

F
E

C
T

T
o

ta
l 

th
is

 

y
e
a
r

T
o

ta
l 

la
s
t 

y
e
a
r

4
8
1

4
6
8

4
7
1

4
8
4

Agenda Item # 12aIII
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item #12aIV
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
April 26, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

ENDORSEMENT (to United) 

Architectural Control & Standards Committee Formation 

The Maintenance & Construction (M&C) Committee is responsible to uphold specific 
standards and limitations regarding the use of common areas for proposed alterations 
and modifications, and is authorized to approve member requests for alterations or 
modifications of their respective manor. 

Staff anticipates a reduced impact to the M&C Committee from reduction of Board 
Members and staff time spent attending various meetings. The Maintenance 
Operations Division will report and staff the M&C Committee. The Manor Alterations 
Department will report and staff the proposed Architectural Control and Standards 
Committee. 

A motion was made and carried by a vote of 4/0/0 to recommend the Board adopt the 
attached Architectural Control and Standards Committee Charter. 

Agenda Item #12bI 
Page 1 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: May 9, 2017 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Architectural Control and Standards Committee 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the establishment of an Architectural Control and Standards Committee and 
adoption of a Committee Charter.  

BACKGROUND 

The Maintenance & Construction (M&C) Committee is responsible to uphold specific standards 
and limitations regarding the use of common areas for proposed alterations and modifications, 
and is authorized to approve member requests for alterations or modifications of their 
respective manor.   

On April 26, 2017 the Maintenance and Construction (M&C) Committee approved the 
establishment of the Architectural Control and Standards Committee. Staff was asked to 
prepare a Committee Charter for Board review (attachment 1). 

DISCUSSION 

The Committee will report directly to the Board on alterations, variance requests and 
standards. The following are benefits of establishing a standing committee: 

• Reduce the time to respond to members
• Relieve the burden from the M&C Committee members
• Allow for the M&C Committee meetings to occur every two months
• Process is streamlined as the Architectural Control committee will only review alteration

matters, variance requests and standard policies
• Endorsements will go directly to the Board for approval or denial
• Members will be able to speak to their matter without having to sit through other items
• Standing committee will be in compliance with Occupancy Agreement, Article 12.

Alterations and Additions

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Staff anticipates a reduction in time spent at the Maintenance and Construction meetings as a 
result of this committee being established.     

Agenda Item #12bI
Page 2 of 5



United Laguna Woods Mutual Board of Directors 
Board of Directors 
May 9, 2017 
Page 2 

Prepared By: Brett Crane, Manor Alterations Interim Manager 

Reviewed By: Ernesto Munoz, P.E., Maintenance Operations Director 
Lori Moss, Community Manager 

Committee Routing: Maintenance & Construction Committee 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Architectural Control and Standards Committee Charter 

Agenda Item #12bI
Page 3 of 5



UNITED LAGUNA WOODS  

MUTUAL ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE CHARTER 

RESOLUTION 01-17-XXX 

Architectural Control and Standards Committee Charter 

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the Occupancy Agreement, Article 12 and the 
Bylaws, the Architectural Control and Standards Committee is hereby 
established as a standing committee of this Corporation; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, May 9, 2017, that the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby assigns the duties and responsibilities of the Architectural 
Control and Standards Committee of the Corporation as follows: 

1. The Architectural Control and Standards Committee shall have the
responsibility to recommend approval or denial of all requests for
nonstandard alterations and modifications, or alterations that have
generated neighbor objection. Final recommendations shall be noted on
the Mutual’s monthly Board meeting Agenda Consent Calendar.

2. In their decision, the Committee shall consider the following criteria:
• Compliance with existing standards 
• Aesthetic effect 
• Cost impact on the Mutual 

• Conformity with Local and State Building Codes 
• Compliance with applicable law 
• Value impact 

3. The Board may choose to become involved in a Member’s appeal of the
Committee’s decision. Should the Board become involved, prior to the 
review of the appeal, the Committee will document justification of their 
decision. If necessary, the Committee has the authority to consult with the 
Mutual Legal Counsel for advice. 

4. The Committee shall have the authority to recommend new Architectural
Standards or any revisions of all Mutual Architectural Standards. Final
approval will rest with the Mutual Board.

5. The  Committee  shall  require  Neighbor  Awareness  and  Approval  forms
for  all alteration requests including requests that appear to conform to
standards.

6. The Committee shall review advancements in technology and methods that
could result in increased efficiencies and/or cost savings to the Mutual.

7. The  Committee  may  impose  contingencies  upon  approvals  to
ensure  the structural, architectural, or common area integrity of the
Members’ request.

Agenda Item #12bI
Page 4 of 5



8. The Committee shall insure that all structural alterations, including any
internal and external physical changes, performed or caused to be
performed by a Member, shall not be performed without prior written
consent of the Mutual. Consent is given either by proper processing of
approved alteration standard, or use of the variance request process. The
Committee will recommend a Disciplinary Hearing for all alterations
preceding approval or deviation from approved changes.

9. The intended activities of the Committee may include but may not be
limited to meeting when necessary, meeting on a monthly basis,
reviewing staff recommendations regarding compliance with architectural
standards or variance requests, conducting tours, and providing
communications to the Community.

10. This committee shall exist and function in accordance with United Laguna
Woods Mutual Bylaws and Occupancy Agreement.

11. This Committee shall be comprised of no more than five Directors.

12. This committee may appoint up to three voting advisors, subject to the
approval of the Board.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the officers and agents of 
this corporation are hereby authorized on behalf of the corporation to 
carry out the purpose of this resolution.

Agenda Item #12bI
Page 5 of 5









this page intentionally left blank



MEETING OF THE UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL 
GOVERNING DOCUMENTS REVIEW COMMITTEE 

Monday, April 24, 2017 – 2:00 PM 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center, Sycamore Room 

24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods, CA  92637 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Juanita Skillman - Chair, Steve Leonard, Maggie Blackwell 
Advisors - Bevan Strom, Barbara Copley, and Mary Stone 

OTHERS PRESENT: United Directors Cash Achrekar, Jack Bassler, and Janey Dorrell 
and GRF Director John Beckett 

STAFF PRESENT: Eve Morton and Pamela Bashline 

REPORT 
1. Call to Order

Chair Skillman called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

2. Acknowledgement of Press

No Press present. 

3. Member Comments

None. 

4. Chair’s Remarks

None. 

Reports: 

5. Approval of Report from the March 27, 2017 meeting

Director Leonard moved to approve the report. Director Blackwell seconded. All were in favor. 

Items for Discussion and Consideration: 

New Business: 

6. Discuss Damage Restoration Hearing Determination Letter

Chair Skillman feels it is important that the damage costs be broken out so people don’t just 
see one lump sum. 

Advisor Strom said to include the section of the Occupancy Agreement referred to in this letter. 

Agenda Item #12d
Page 1 of 4



United Governing Documents Review Committee 
April 24, 2017 
Page 2 
 

Chair Skillman said she would like to check with Betty Parker to make sure check may be 
made out United and not GRF. 
 
Some additional wording changes were discussed. 
 

The committee requested staff make the changes and use the letter going forward. 
 

7. Draft a Resolution regarding turning off cable for non-payment 
 

Chair Skillman reported that currently United sends a request to GRF who has a hearing to 
make a decision and then tells Broadband to turn off the cable.  She would now like United to 
make the decision and so a resolution allowing United to do this must be written to be 
approved by the Board. 
 
Chair Skillman will check with Broadband to see if there is a fee to turn their cable service back 
on and, if so, would like to add that fee to the resolution. 
 
Advisor Strom felt residents must be warned when their cable will be turned off. 
 
Director Leonard suggested there be wording in their first late notice advising them that their 
cable will be turned off in certain timeframe if their account is not brought up-to-date.  Chair 
Skillman said she will work with Betty Parker on the wording. 
 
Ms. Morton was asked to draft the resolution and endorsement on this for the Board. 

  
8. Discuss Proposed Operating Rules for Hot Tub  

 
Chair Skillman explained that United board has asked the Committee to discuss and make 
recommendations regarding their opinion on whether United should have hot tub rules.  This is 
also on United M &C’s agenda this month. 

 
 Resident Theresa Frost handed out to the committee some residents’ ideas on hot tub rules. 
 
 There was discussion regarding noise and levels of noise and what is acceptable. 
 
 Dick Rader suggested looking at what other cities rules are regarding hot tubs. 
 
 There was discussion regarding weight of water on slabs and the effect of vibrations on slabs. 
 

Chair Skillman reported that United’s attorney said people who already have a hot tub would 
be allowed to keep them. 

 
 Theresa Frost said having a hot tub in the atrium of the Valencia model is what is the problem. 
 
 Discussion of responsibility of realtors to disclose hot tub noise. 
 

Advisor Copley read the section of the Occupancy Agreement which has to do with residents 
enjoyment of the Village. 

Agenda Item #12d 
Page 2 of 4



United Governing Documents Review Committee 
April 24, 2017 
Page 3 

Chair Skillman will give this proposed hot tub policy to M&C and they can look at it and amend 
or decide to not allow hot tubs at all. Director Dorrell said to make clear to M&C that this is not 
a recommendation. 

Advisor Stone said neighbor to neighbor issues should be decided by a court of law. 

9. Discuss and Consider Process for Updating the Trust

Chair Skillman reported that their attorney would like to be involved in this process.  There will 
be a special meeting of this committee which he will attend to interpret process and steps he 
feels United Directors should follow in their recommendations for updating the Trust.   

Advisor Stone said figuring out which parts of the trust are still in effect is important. 

Director Blackwell said we must decide what is pertinent. 

10. Discuss 90-day Advisory Letter to Shareholders

Chair Skillman explained that Chuck Holland is working on the process for sending out this 
letter. 

Pamela Bashline explained that Lori Moss and Jeff Beaumont are working on a version of this 
letter. 

Chair Skillman wondered if it was feasible for Chuck to generate letters with all the alterations 
regarding a residence.  Advisor Strom believes some long ago handwritten cards with 
information have not been entered into Stellar.  

Chair Skillman said she will have a meeting with Ms. Moss and Jeff Beaumont to discuss this 
further. 

CONCLUDING BUSINESS: 

11. Committee Member Comments

Advisor Stone said this committee should be working on policies and not disputes the 
residents have about a policy. 

Director Leonard feels any member comments should be kept to three minutes. 

12. Discuss date of next meeting

Date of next meeting will be Monday, May 22. 

13. Adjournment at 4:20 p.m.

Agenda Item #12d 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item #12d 
Page 4 of 4



ULWM Membership Disciplinary Report

Feb Mar Apr

Total Number of Cases: 302 324 306

Cases Resolved this Month: 105 43 26

Allegations:

Abandoned Vehicle: 11 21 17

Alteration Maintenance: 7 7 11

Animal Nuisance: 17 19 8

Assessment Delinquency: 2 2 3

Balcony Clutter: 12 12 11

Breezeway Clutter: 8 9 9

Carport Clutter: 34 40 39

Common Area Clutter: 9 11 11

Electrical Upgrade: 1 1 0

Electrical Vehicle: 0 0 0

Illegal Occupancy 33 39 41

Interior Clutter: 10 9 10

Landscape: 26 27 23

Maintenance: 0 0 5

Nuisance: 46 48 42

Other: 3 0 0

Short Term Rentals: 19 15 12

Traffic Violations: 7 7 10

Patio Clutter: 22 21 22

Unauthorized Alteration: 33 33 30

Vehicle Oil: 4 3 2

Abandoned Vehicles, Animal Nuisance, Balcony Clutter, Carport 

Clutter, Nuisance Restrictions, and Unauthorized Alterations 

have decreased.  However, Alteration Maintenance has 

increased.  

Agenda Item # 12h
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

United Laguna Woods Mutual Committee Appointments 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the following persons are hereby 
appointed to serve the Corporation in the following capacities: 

Communications Committee 
Jan LaBarge, Chair 
Maggie Blackwell, Chair 
Maxine McIntosh 

Executive Hearings Committee 
Juanita Skillman, Chair 
Lenny Ross, Co-Chair 
Janey Dorrell, Co-Chair 
Steven Leonard 
Cash Achrekar 

Finance Committee  
Pat English, Chair 
Gary Morrison, Co-Chair 
Juanita Skillman 
Andre Torng 
Non-voting Advisors: Cynthia Statsmann, Manuel Armanderiz 

Governing Documents Review Committee 
Juanita Skillman, Chair 
Maggie Blackwell, Co-Chair 
Steve Leonard 
Non-voting Advisor: Bevan Strom, Mary Stone, Barbara Copley 

Laguna Canyon Foundation 
TBD 

Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings 
Don Tibbetts – Morning 
Lenny Ross – Afternoon 
Jack Bassler – Afternoon Session 

Landscape Committee 
Maggie Blackwell, Chair 
Juanita Skillman, Co-Chair 
Maxine McIntosh 
Andre Torng 
Non-voting Advisors: Pamela Grundke, Barbara Copley, Kay Anderson 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 1 of 2



Maintenance and Construction Committee 
Don Tibbetts, Chair 
Steve Leonard, Co-Chair 
Jan LaBarge 
Janey Dorrell 
Pat English 
Jack Bassler 
Non-voting Advisor: Del Ng 

New Resident Orientation 
Per Rotation List 

Preparedness for Disaster 
Andre Torng, Chair 
Gary Morrison 
Cash Achrekar 
Janey Dorrell, Co-Chair  
Non-voting Advisors: Kathleen Matthews, Kay Anderson 

Resident Advisory Committee 
Maxine McIntosh, Chair 
Janey Dorrell  
Juanita Skillman, Chair 
Andre Torng, Co-Chair 
Non-voting Advisors: Kay Anderson, Nancy Lannon 

Architectural Review Committee 
Don Tibbetts, Chair 
Steve Leonard 
Jack Bassler 
Janey Dorrell 
Non-Voting Advisor: Reza Bastani 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-17-30, adopted February 14, 
2017 is hereby superseded and canceled. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution.  

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

Golden Rain Foundation Committee Appointments 

RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that in compliance with Article 7, Section 7.3 of 
the Golden Rain Foundation Bylaws, adopted September 29, 2014, the 
following persons are hereby appointed to serve on the committees of the 
Golden Rain Foundation: 

Business Planning 
Pat English 
Lenny Ross  
Juanita Skillman 

Community Activities 
Jan LaBarge 
Janey Dorrell 
Maxine McIntosh 

Finance  
Pat English 
Lenny Ross 
Juanita Skillman 

Financial Reporting Study Group 
Pat English 
Lenny Ross 

Landscape Committee 
Juanita Skillman 
Maggie Blackwell 
Maxine McIntosh 

Maintenance & Construction 
Don Tibbetts 
Steve Leonard 
Jack Bassler 

Media and Communications Committee 
Jan LaBarge 
Juanita Skillman 
Maggie Blackwell 
Steve Leonard 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 1 of 2



Mobility and Vehicles Committee 
Janey Dorrell 
Steve Leonard 
Andre Torng 

Security and Community Access 
Gary Morrison 
Andre Torng  
Cash Achrekar 

Town Hall Meetings 
Per Rotation 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-17-31, adopted February 14, 
2017, is hereby superseded and cancelled. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution.  

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 2 of 2



United Laguna Woods Mutual 

Regular Board Meeting 

May 9, 2017 

Entertain a Motion to Refer the Drone Policy back to the Security and Community Access Committee; 

who have scheduled a meeting on May 18, 2017 at 1:30 at Clubhouse 1.   

Agenda Item #13c
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



DIRECTORS CODE OF CONDUCT 

May, 2017 

This Code of Conduct is implemented with the purpose of protecting and advancing the 
interests of United Laguna Woods Mutual (“United”). This Code of Conduct is mandatory for 
and binding on all directors, officers, committee members or other volunteers of United. 

BOARD & MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS 

Directors should be respectful to one another and to Members, staff and all residents and vendors in 
the community, to ensure that business is carried out in an orderly and expedient fashion during and 
outside meetings. Directors should respect United’s parliamentary rules, policies, practices, and 
decorum. Director comments and deliberations must be in clear and simple terms, and must avoid 
repetition, disruptive behavior, profanity, personal attacks, rhetorical concerns discussed by the same 
person, or harassment. Directors are expected to act with integrity, demonstrating zero tolerance for 
unethical behavior, both for themselves and their colleagues. Directors are expected to have courage 
and demonstrate a willingness to do the right thing and make the right decisions, even if it is difficult 
or unpopular (i.e., no fence sitting). The violation of these rules may result in a director’s or officer’s 
involuntary recusal pursuant to United’s Governing Documents and applicable law, and may result in 
discipline pursuant to the Governing Documents and applicable law. 

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES 

The general duties for directors are to enforce United’s governing documents, collect and preserve 
United’s financial resources, insure United’s assets against loss as required by the governing 
documents or applicable law, and keep the common areas in a state of good repair. To fulfill that 
responsibility, directors must: 

• regularly attend all Board meetings and committee meetings for assigned committees. If
you miss three (3) consecutive committee meetings you are subject to being removed
from the committee.

• be prepared for all meetings that you are attending.

• review material provided in preparation for board meetings.

• be punctual and on time for all meetings.

• demonstrate professional etiquette and behavior.

UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL 

Agenda Item #13d 
Page 1 of 5



• stay focused at meetings and do not be distracted by doing outside activities, such
as pleasure reading, using electronic devices, etc.

• actively participate in board and committee deliberations; recognize the difference
between productively participating in discussions and counter-productively dominating
deliberations through the volume or length of comments. Work with other members of
the Board/committee to create workable compromises as necessary.

• stay on topic, ask questions as they are needed but be sure the questions are related to
the current topic being discussed.

• make relevant, informed comments focused on the specific aspect of the issue being
considered.

• review the Association’s financial reports.

• make reasonable inquiry before making decisions.

• make all decisions and actions in good faith, and in consideration of the best interests of
United, and not in the best interests of the individual director or faction of the community.

• Board members must not take actions or make decisions that result in a personal benefit
to the director at the expense of United.

• avoid relationships, such as unique business, financial or personal relationships (or
hoped-for-relationships) that create an actual or the perception of a conflict of interest.

• act with professional courtesy and respect towards fellow directors, members, residents
and vendors.

• all Board members must present themselves to our Members with high level of
professionalism during our meetings, as well as when meetings are not held.

• do not respond to the mass emails within our community, with your email response,
especially those that pertain to issues before the Board. Any such emails can be used in
legal disputes against you and our Board.

• legal issues must be advised from United Board Members to the President who will
advise United’s legal counsel, and as direction is provided from legal counsel the
President will so advise the Board.  Any two directors may contact United’s legal counsel
if they believe, based on good cause and support, that the President is breaching his/her
obligations as President and/or director.

PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT 

In general, directors and committee members must conduct all dealings with Members, 
residents, vendors and staff with professional courtesy, honesty and fairness. This means that 
directors must not engage in any harassing, abusive, threatening, intimidating or discriminatory 
conduct. The Board has a “no discrimination and harassment” policy. The following will not be 
tolerated: 

Agenda Item #13d 
Page 2 of 5



• disparaging, offensive, racist and/or bigoted remarks, including any remarks and 
statements made to any Member, resident and their family members or visitors, 
including but not limited to, any contractor, sub-contractor, plumber, landscaper, vendor, 
communications and service provider. 

 
• disparaging, off color, offensive and/or bigoted remarks, including remarks and/or 

statements made to anyone claiming to be, or perceived to be lesbian, gay, transgender, 
bi-sexual, homosexual, trans-sexual, or any person that enters the community. 

 
• disparaging, offensive, racist and/or bigoted remarks regarding the race, color, creed, 

culture, ethnicity, country of origin, citizenship, and/or citizenship status made to any 
resident, their family members, visitors, including, but not limited to, any contractor, sub- 
contractor, landscaper, plumber, vendor, communications and service provider. 

 
Directors must safeguard information that belongs to United. Directors and committee members 
are responsible for protecting United’s confidential information. As such, they may not use 
confidential information for the benefit of themselves, or their relatives, or for persons with whom 
they have a business relationship. Except when disclosure is duly authorized by the Board or 
committee (i.e., majority), or legally mandated, no director or committee member may disclose 
confidential information. Confidential information includes, without limitation: 

 
• private personal information of fellow directors, committee members or staff. 

 
• private personnel information of United’s members. 

 
• disciplinary actions against or concerning members of United. 

 
• assessment collection information against or concerning members of United. 

 
• legally privileged communications (including disputes or otherwise), and communications 

deemed confidential by the board, in which the board is or may be involved--directors 
may not discuss such matters with persons not on the board without the prior approval of 
the board of directors, which may also require the approval of United’s legal counsel. 
Failure to follow these restrictions could constitute a breach of the attorney-client 
privilege and result in the loss of confidential information. 

 
 
INTERACTING WITH STAFF 

 

Directors shall not direct staff unless with Board authority (i.e., majority). However, directors 
may work with staff when necessary in the following situations: to carry out decisions of the 
Board; to carry out decisions of a committee, made within the scope and authority of the 
committee; and to gather information in preparation of an upcoming action of the Board as 
proposed in a pending agenda. Notwithstanding, directors shall not interact with staff in a 
manner that prevents them from fulfilling their primary job responsibilities. 

 
 
DISCLOSURE & RECUSAL 

 

Directors and committee members must immediately disclose the existence of any actual and 
potential conflict of interest relating to him- or herself or his or her membership or manor. 
Directors and committee members must withdraw from participation in decisions in which they 
have an actual, material interest; however, it is strongly recommended that directors withdraw 
from participation in decisions in which they also have a potential material interest. 

Agenda Item #13d 
Page 3 of 5



A director or member of a committee shall not vote on any of the following matters: 

• discipline of the director or committee member.

• an assessment or fee against the director or committee member for damage to the
common area or facilities.

• a  request,  by  the  director  or  committee  member,  for  a  payment  plan  for  overdue
assessments.

• a decision whether to foreclose on a lien on the separate interest of the director or
committee member.

• review  of  a  proposed  physical  change  to  the  separate  interest  of  the  director  or
committee member.

• a grant of exclusive use common area to the director or committee member.

VIOLATIONS OF POLICY 

Directors and committee members who violate this policy are deemed to be acting outside the 
course and scope of their authority. Anyone in violation of this policy may be subject to 
immediate disciplinary action, including, but not limited to: 

• censure.

• removal from committees.

• removal as an officer of the board.

• request for resignation from the board.

• recall by the membership.

• legal proceedings.

Prior to taking any of the actions described above, the Board (or an executive committee 
appointed for this purpose) shall investigate the potential violation. The Board or committee 
shall review the evidence of violation, endeavor to meet with the director/committee member 
believed to be in violation, confer with United’s legal counsel, and (if a committee) present its 
findings and recommendations to the Board for appropriate action. The Board shall endeavor to 
meet with the director/committee member in executive session prior to imposing disciplinary 
action against that person. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I acknowledge that I have received and read the United’s Directors Code of Conduct and have 
had the opportunity to ask questions about same. I understand my obligations as a 
director/committee member under this Code of Conduct and will act in accordance with my 
obligations. 

Signature: Date: 

Print name: 

Agenda Item #13d
Page 4 of 5



RESOLUTION 01-17-XX 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California’s Common Interest Development 
Meeting Act (California Civil Code § 1363.05) and the governing 
documents of United Laguna Hills Mutual (“United”), United’s Board of 
Directors (the “Board”) is required to hold meetings in open session and 
executive session, as may be applicable, to deliberate and act upon the 
business and affairs of United; and  

WHEREAS, the Board believes that efficient Board meetings are not 
possible unless those meetings are conducted in a professional, orderly 
and timely fashion; and 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to promote such professionalism, order and 
timeliness, and regulate Board meetings in an even and consistent 
fashion; and 

WHEREAS, the Board believes that in order to effectuate the items 
described above, each Board member should execute the  “Code of 
Conduct”; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on May 9, 2017 that Resolution 
01-10-265 adopted November 15, 2017 is hereby superseded and 
cancelled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #13d
Page 5 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



United Laguna Woods Mutual, Laguna Woods California 
VEHICLE, TRAFFIC, AND PARKING RULES 

Resolutions 01-14-154, 01-15-45, 01-15-91, 01-16-32 

PROPOSED 2017 VEHICLE DECAL LIMIT 

5.5 RESIDENT VEHICLE DECAL LIMIT 
Each MANOR is allowed to receive a limited number of GRF decals based on the 
number of original construction bedrooms. 

• 1 Bedroom MANOR up to 1

decal

• 2 Bedroom MANOR up to 2 decals

Decals may be issued in any combination to eligible motor vehicles, golf carts and 
golf cars, up to the total authorized per Manor for new residents. 

Decal counts do not include motorhomes and commercial vehicles stored in 
the GRF Recreational Vehicle Storage Area. At least one vehicle must park in 
the carport. 

A variance request for additional decals, at a cost of $25 per variance request, must 
be submitted for review and approval.  An RFID sticker may be required at an 
additional cost. 

Agenda Item #13e
Page 1 of 2



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-17 XX 

United Laguna Woods Mutual Traffic Rules and 
Regulations 

WHEREAS,  the  Traffic  Rules  and  Regulations  are  intended  to 
mirror  the California Vehicle Code and to adhere to the Davis-Stirling 
Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Parking Committee of this Corporation recognizes the 
need to amend a portion of the Mutual Traffic Rules and Regulations to 
accommodate for parking; and 

WHEREAS, each manor is allowed to receive a certain amount of GRF 
parking decals; and 

WHEREAS, new residents will be issued one decal per bedroom; and 

WHERAS, residents may apply for a variance for a $25 fee; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, May 9, 2017, that the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts the revised United Laguna 
Woods Mutual  Traffic  Rules  and  Regulations,  as  attached  to  the 
minutes  of  this meeting; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-16-32 adopted April 12, 
2016 is hereby superseded and cancelled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item #13e
Page 2 of 2



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: May 8, 2017 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Select Audit Committee Representative Appointment 

RECOMMENDATION 

Review resumes and appoint a resident to represent the United Board on the Select Audit 
Committee 

BACKGROUND 

United Laguna Woods Mutual has a vacancy on the Select Audit Task Force.  Advertisement was placed in 
the What’s Up in the Village blast and in the Globe requesting that resumes be submitted to the CEO’s office 
by May 4, 2017 at noon.   

DISCUSSION 

The Task Force meets periodically with the majority of meetings happening during the annual audit from 
December through March. The Task Force requires a commitment of approximately 12 meetings for 
approximately two hours each, in addition to some personal study time to review the financials and audit 
report.  Members service under the direction of the GRF Treasurer who serves as the chair of the 
Committee.

The Select Audit Task Force serves as the liaison between the Finance Committees of the Laguna Woods 
Village Corporations and the independent auditors to oversee the annual audit of the financial statements of 
the corporations, review reports from the auditors, and recommend any appropriate action in connection 
therewith.  

Residents with significant accounting, auditing and/or corporate financial experience are ideal candidates. 
Two resumes have been received.   

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None 

Prepared By: Lori Moss, Community Manager 

Reviewed By: Leslie Cameron, Assistant Corporate Secretary 

Agenda Item #14a
Page 1 of 1


	5a Minutes of April 11, 2017 Regular Open Session.pdf
	Blank Page

	11a M&C Committee Recommendations.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	11d Executive Hearing Committee Name Change - Resolution.pdf
	Blank Page

	11e Red Curb Procedures.pdf
	Red Curb Request Procedures Endorsement & Attachments for Board.pdf (p.1)
	Item #22 - Staff Report - Red Curb Request Procedures 4-26-17.pdf (p.2-3)
	Item #22 - Attachment 1 - Red Curb Request Procedures 4-26-17.pdf (p.4)
	Item #22 - Attachment 2 - Proposed Resolution - Red Curb Request Procedures 4-26-17.pdf (p.5)
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	12aI United Financial Update.pdf
	Blank Page

	12aIV 2017 Budget Calendar.pdf
	Blank Page

	12bI United Achitectural Control and Standards Committee Establishment and Charter .pdf
	Blank Page

	12c Landscape Report.pdf
	Blank Page

	12h Report of Delinquincies.pdf
	Blank Page

	13c Refer the Drone Policy back to SACA.pdf
	Blank Page

	13d Director Code of Conduct - Resolution.pdf
	BOARD & MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS
	BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
	PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT
	INTERACTING WITH STAFF
	DISCLOSURE & RECUSAL
	VIOLATIONS OF POLICY
	ACKNOWLEDGMENT
	Blank Page

	13e Parking Decal Policy and Resolution.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page




